
PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

9.30 AM - DYDD GWENER, 26 GORFFENNAF 2019

YSTAFELL BWYLLGOR 1/2 – CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT

Rhan 1

1. Datganiadau o fudd  

2. Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol  (Tudalennau 3 - 8)

3. Cylch Gwaith y Pwyllgor Safonau a'r Blaenraglen Waith  
(Tudalennau 9 - 16)

4. Eitemau brys  
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag 
Adran 100B(4)(b) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

Rhan 2

5. Mynediad i gyfarfodydd  
Penderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o'r eitem(au) ganlynol/canlynol yn 
unol ag Adran 100a (4) a (5) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 a'r 
paragraffau eithriedig perthnasol o Ran 4 Atodlen 12a y Ddeddf 
uchod

6. Cyfreithiol gan Ombwdsmon  (Tudalennau 17 - 232)

S.Phillips
Prif Weithredwr

Canolfan Ddinesig
Port Talbot 19 Gorffennaf 2019

AGENDA



Aelodaeth Pwyllgor: 

Cadeirydd: C.L.Jones

Is-Gadeirydd: B.Richards

Aelodau 
Annibynnol:

L.Fleet a/ac T.Ward 

Aelodau 
NPTCBC:

S.E.Freeguard a/ac D.Keogh

Aelod o'r 
Gymuned Dref: A.Carter

Dirprwy:

Dirprwy 
NPTCBC:

R.W.Wood

Dirprwy o'r 
Gymuned Dref:

Nodiadau: (a) I gael Cworwm ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Safonau rhaid cael o leiaf dri 
Aelod gan gynnwys y Cadeirydd (neu'r is-gadeirydd yn ei absenoldeb). Rhaid i o leiaf 
hanner yr aelodau sy'n bresennol (gan gynnwys y Cadeirydd) fod yn Aelodau 
Annibynnol. (e.e. pe bai dau Aelod Annibynnol yn bresennol yn unig, dim ond dau 
Aelod arall o'r Pwyllgor ddylai fod yn bresennol).

    (b) Gan ystyried yr uchod, os oes unrhyw broblem gyda phresenoldeb, a 
all pob Aelod roi gwybod i'r swyddog monitro/swyddog gwasanaethau democrataidd 
cyn gynted â phosib. 



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

(Committee Room 1/2 - Port Talbot Civic Centre)

Members Present: 9 July 2019

Chairperson: C.L.Jones

Independent 
Members:

L.Fleet and T.Ward

NPTCBC Members: Councillors S.E.Freeguard and D.Keogh

Community 
Committee Members:

A.Carter

Officers In 
Attendance:

C.Griffiths and T.Davies

Apology: B.Richards 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following Members made declarations of interest at the 
commencement of the meeting:

Councillor D.Keogh            -   Report of the Head of Legal Services 
and Monitoring Officer – Item 3 – Grant 
of Dispensations under Section 81 (4) 
Local Government Act 2000 – as he is 
a beneficiary of general dispensation 
for governors of Neath Port Talbot 
Schools; car parking for Staff and 
Members and has family members or 
close relationships with individuals who 
benefit in some way in respect of 
School Transport.

Councillor S.Freeguard      -  Report of the Head of Legal Services 
and Monitoring Officer – Item 3 – Grant 
of Dispensations under Section 81 (4) 

Tudalen3

Eitem yr Agenda2



90719

Local Government Act 2000 – as she is 
a beneficiary of car parking for Staff and 
Members of the Authority and as her 
sister-in-law works for Cleaning 
Services.

Clifford Jones                     -  Report of the Head of Legal Services 
and Monitoring Officer – Item 3 – Grant 
of Dispensations under Section 81 (4) 
Local Government Act 2000 – as 
Councillor D.Cawsey is his wife’s 
nephew.

Alan Carter                         -  Report of the Head of Legal Services 
and Monitoring Officer – Item 3 – Grant 
of Dispensations under Section 81 (4) 
Local Government Act 2000 – as he is a 
School Governor at Crynallt Primary 
School, and Item 5 – Referral from the 
Ombudsman – as he is a Member of 
Neath Town Council.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 
the 16 May, 2019 be confirmed as a true and 
accurate record of the proceedings.

3. GRANT OF DISPENSATIONS AND RENEWAL OF GRANTS 
UNDER SECTION 81 (4) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

Members noted that the requests for dispensations under 
consideration at today’s meeting, if granted, would run until the 
remainder of this elected Council, until the first meeting of the 
Standards Committee following the Council Annual Meeting in 2022.

The Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer informed 
Members of a slight amendment to the circulated report (page 21) 
within the Miscellaneous Dispensation schedule, Councillor 
S.Freeguard no longer needed the dispensation relating to Abertawe 
Bro Morgannwg University Health Board.

Tudalen4



90719

Members considered renewals and applications received for 
dispensations relating to employment; school governors; school 
transport; school reorganisation matters; school admissions policies; 
staff and Member car parking; miscellaneous dispensations and 
voluntary sector funding, as detailed in the circulated report. 

(At this point in the meeting C.Jones and Councillor S.Freeguard 
reaffirmed their interests and withdrew from the meeting for the 
discussion and voting thereon)

RESOLVED: (a) That the applications for dispensations 
relating to Employment set out in 
paragraph 13 to the circulated report, be 
approved for those Members listed in 
paragraph 16 to the circulated report, to 
speak and vote, and that the 
dispensations run to the Standards 
Committee which follows the Annual 
Meeting of Council, 2022;

(At this point in the meeting C.Jones and Councillor S.Freeguard 
rejoined the meeting, and A.Carter and Councillor D.Keogh 
reaffirmed their interests and withdrew from the meeting for the 
discussion and voting thereon)

(b)     that a general dispensation to speak and 
vote on all education matters as a result 
of appointment as a School Governor be 
further granted until the Standards 
Committee which follows the Annual 
Meeting of Council, 2022;

(At this point in the meeting A.Carter rejoined the meeting, while 
Councillor D.Keogh remained outside for this item)

(c) that a general dispensation to speak and 
vote on all School Transport matters be 
granted until the Standards Committee 
which follows the Annual Meeting of 
Council, 2022, provided they do not 
directly financially advantage or 
disadvantage or give other direct benefit 
or disbenefit to a Member or the 
Member’s family who is employed by the 
County Borough Council;

Tudalen5



90719

(At this point in the meeting Councillor D.Keogh rejoined the meeting)

(d) that the Applications for dispensations 
relating to School Reorganisation 
matters as set out in paragraph 29 to the 
circulated report, be approved for those 
Members listed in paragraph 31 to the 
circulated report, to speak but not vote, 
and that the dispensations run to the 
Standards Committee which follows the 
Annual Meeting of Council, 2022;

(e) that a general dispensation be granted to 
all Members to speak and vote on all 
School Admission Policies until the 
Standards Committee which follows the 
Annual Meeting of Council, 2022;

(At this point in the meeting Councillors S.Freeguard and D.Keogh 
reaffirmed their interests and withdrew from the meeting for the 
discussion and voting thereon)

(f) that a general dispensation be granted to 
all Members to speak and vote on all 
Staff and Member Car Parking until the 
Standards Committee which follows the 
Annual Meeting of Council, 2022;

(At this point in the meeting Councillors S.Feeguard and D.Keogh 
rejoined the meeting)

(g) That the applications for Miscellaneous 
dispensations as set out in paragraph 43 
to the circulated report, be approved in 
the circumstances to speak or to speak 
and vote, as set out in the Schedule 
within the circulated report, and that the 
dispensations run to the Standards 
Committee which follows the Annual 
Meeting 2022;

(h) that a general dispensation be further 
granted to the Member detailed within 
the circulated report to speak only on 

Tudalen6



90719

voluntary/third sector matters, and that 
the dispensations cover all matters 
related to the funding for the 
voluntary/third sector - such 
dispensations to run to the Standards 
Committee which follows the Annual 
Meeting 2022.

4. ACCESS TO MEETINGS 

RESOLVED: That pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following item of business which 
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 18c of Part 4 of Schedule 
12A to the above Act.

5. REFERRAL FROM THE OMBUDSMAN 

RESOLVED:        1. That Councillor S.M.’s conduct amounted to a 
breach, under Paragraph 6(1)(a) (in an official 
capacity or otherwise, bringing the office of 
Member or the Authority into disrepute) of the 
Code of Conduct.

2. That Councillor S.M. be invited to make 
submissions on what action the Standards 
Committee should take, including any 
mitigating factors.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen7



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

29th July 2018

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES – MR C GRIFFITHS

Matter for Information

Wards Affected: All 

Remit of Standards Committee and Forward Work Programme

Purpose of the Report

1. To draw to Members attention the role of the Neath Port Talbot County 
Borough Council’s (“the Council”) Standards Committee and to agree the 
Forward Work Plan.

Background

2. Members will note that the Council has recently appointed two new 
independent members to the Standards Committee in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Standards Committee 
(Wales) Regulations 2001 which governs the working of the Standards 
Committee. It was thought appropriate by the Monitoring Officer of the Council 
that a report be brought to Members of the Standards Committee just to 
confirm once again the remit of the Standards Committee and to provide a 
brief note on the legislative background.

3. Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 introduced a new Ethical 
Framework for Councils.  As part of this framework, the Council has a 
Standards Committee. This Committee is also responsible for standards 
functions in relation to the Town and Community Councils (and their 
Members) in the area of the County Borough Council.

4. Another critical part of the Ethical Framework is the Code of Conduct for 
Members.  One of the functions of the Standards Committee is to assist the 

Tudalen9

Eitem yr Agenda3



Council and the Town and Community Councils in securing compliance with 
the Code.

5. This Code requires all members of these authorities to make a formal 
declaration to observe the Code.  Failure to declare will result in a member 
ceasing to hold the office of Councillor.

6. The Standards Committee is required to have formal Terms of Reference 
which are to discharge with delegated authority the following functions:- 

(a) To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the Members and 
co-opted Members of the Authority;

(b) To assist members and co-opted Members of the Council to observe the 
Members Code of Conduct;

(c) To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members Code of 
Conduct (and relevant protocols relating to Member/Officer relationships);

(d) To monitor the operation of the Council’s adopted Members Code of 
Conduct throughout the Council;

(e) To advise, train, or arrange to train Members and co-opted Members on 
matters relating to the Members Code of Conduct;

(f) Where statutes so permit, to arrange dispensation to speak and/or vote 
where a Member or co-opted Member has an interest in any matters;

(g) To receive Local Commissioner Reports following investigations, or part 
investigations, in relation to allegations of breach of the Members Code of 
Conduct and/or

i. To receive and consider reports and recommendations made 
with regard to same, from the Monitoring Officer (when such 
matters are referred to that Officer) including provision with 
respect to the procedure to be followed by the Standards 
Committee; and

ii. Following its consideration of any such reports or 
recommendations, to take any action prescribed by statute or 
regulations made thereunder (including action against any 
Member or co-opted Member (or former Member or co-opted 
Member) of the Council who is the subject of any such report 
or recommendation) and to give publicity to such report, 
recommendation or action;

Tudalen10



(h) To receive, consider and implement general advice from the Local 
Commissioner and the Council’s Monitoring Officer;

(i) To receive from the Adjudication Panel, Interim Case Tribunals or Case 
Tribunals:-

i. Notices issued by them to Council;

ii. Recommendations about matters relating to the exercise of 
the Council’s function, the Code of Conduct and the 
Standards Committee and make such recommendations as it 
thinks fit to Council relating thereto;

(j) To be responsible for liaison between the Council and external agencies, 
in particular the National Assembly for Wales, the Welsh Audit Office and 
the local Ombudsman in connection with any matter within the 
Committee’s terms of reference, under the provisions of the 2000 Act and 
Regulations made thereafter;

(k) To make representations to the Welsh Government and National 
Assembly for Wales and the Welsh Local Government Association about 
any matter relating to the General Principles of Conduct for Members of 
the Council;

(l) To consider and recommend procedures for complaints to be dealt with by 
the Standards Committee and to propose amendments as may be 
appropriate from time to time in accordance with statute etc.;

(m)To oversee the whistle-blowing regime in particular in this respect to 
consider and recommend procedures in respect of the following:

i. Whistle-blowing arrangements

ii. Anti-Fraud/Corruption or malpractice strategy;

(n) To examine any Code(s) of Conduct for Employees of the Council and to 
make recommendations as may be considered appropriate;

(o) To receive progress reports from the Monitoring Officer from time to time 
on such matters within the purview of the Standards Committee, and to 
make such recommendations to Council as may be deemed appropriate;

(p) To exercise such powers or duties as may be given to or imposed on 
Standards Committees from time to time by legislation;

Tudalen11



(q) To exercise in relation to Community Councils and their Members within 
the County Borough area such of the foregoing matters as are referred to 
in Section 56 of the Local Government Act 2000;

7. The Standards Committee of Council, hence, will have responsibility for all the 
same functions in relation to Town and Community Councils situated within 
the County Borough area.

8. The Local Government Act 2000 and the Standards Committees (Wales) 
Regulations 2001 provide specific rules for the composition and operation of a 
Standards Committee.  The principal requirements are as follows:

(a) size of the Committee between 5 and 9 members;

(b) if the number is even at least half the members should be Independent 
Members.  If the number is odd, the majority must be Independent 
Members;

(c) Independent Members must be people who are not Members or Officers, 
or the spouses of Members or Officers, of the Council or of Town or 
Community Councils in its area or other bodies having a Standards 
Committee;

(d) there is also a bar on former Councillors or Officers being Independent 
Members of their own Council’s Standards Committee, but they can be an 
independent member of another authority they have not served on after 12 
months of ceasing to be a Member or Officer of their own Council;

(e) the leader, or elected mayor, or chair of a Board (within an authority 
operating alternative arrangements) are excluded;

(f) a maximum of one member of an executive can be placed on the 
Standards Committee;

(g) one member must be a Town or Community Council Member.  That Town 
or Community Council Member cannot also be a County Borough Council 
Councillor;

(h) political balance rules do not apply;

(i) the quorum is 3 (2 being independent, including the chair);

(j) Access to Information Act rules apply;

(k) Monitoring Officer or representative must attend each meeting;

(l) Chair and Vice must be independent – Chair has casting vote;

Tudalen12



(m)Chair and vice Chair are appointed by the Committee at its first meeting.

9. The Council’s Democratic Services Sections now provides forward work 
programmes for each of the Council’s decision making forums, whether it be 
full Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Meetings or Committees.

10. It was felt important therefore for Members to have a potential forward work 
plan and for a discussion to be had at the Standards Committee meeting of 
the 29th July 2018 what items they might wish to consider having reports 
prepared on for Standards Committee meetings for the coming year and what 
areas they wish the Standards Committee to give consideration to in line with 
the remit of the Standards Committee set out in the report to Standards 
Committee of the 13th July 2018..

11.The Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer has provided an indication 
of matters at this stage which will be reported to Members in the coming year, 
which are set out as follows:

Standards Committee Matters for Agenda
26th July 2019  Remit of Standards Committee 

and Forward Programme Work
 Ombudsman Referral

22nd November 2019  Ombudsman Annual Report
 Code of Conduct Update
 Whistleblowing Policy
 Role of Standards Committee 

with Town and Community 
Councils

13th March 2019  Ombudsman Annual Report
 Code of Conduct Update

Financial Impact

12.There are no financial impacts associated with this Report.

Equality Impact Assessment

13.There are no equality impacts associated with this Report

Workforce Impacts

14.There are no workforce impacts associated with this Report

Tudalen13



Legal Impacts

15.The Standards Committee is governed by the obligations set out in the Local 
Government Act 2000 and its composition and running is as set out in the 
Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 2001.

Consultation

16.There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on 
this item.

Recommendations

17.That Members note the remit of the Standards Committee and the legislative 
background in which the Standards Committee operates and that Members 
agree a Forward Work Plan for the Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 
Standards Committee and approve the items for discussion set out in 
paragraph 4 of this report and any other items that they may wish to add to 
the Forward Work Plan. 

Reason for Report

18.That Members of the Standards Committee are aware of the remit of the 
Standards Committee and the legislative background in which the Standards 
Committee operates and that Members agree a Forward Work Plan to ensure 
that the Standards Committee adequately discharges its functions in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2000

Appendices

19.None

List of Background Papers

20.The Constitution of Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

Officer Contact

Mr Craig Griffiths

Head of Legal Services

Telephone 01639 763767

Tudalen14



Email: c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen15



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen17

Eitem yr Agenda6
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen21

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen31

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen45

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen169

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen207

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen211

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 18c yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol
	3 Cylch Gwaith y Pwyllgor Safonau a'r Blaenraglen Waith
	6 Cyfreithiol gan Ombwdsmon
	Appendix 1 Marston
	Appendix 2 Marston
	Appendix 3 Marston
	Appendix 4 Marston
	Appendix 5 Marston
	Appendix 6 Marston


